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As a major lingerie brand
owner and retailer in China,
Embry has always strived to
provide customers with stylish
and comfortable products
since its establishment forty
years ago
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The Group's sales points span the whole nation, with footprints in all major cities such as
Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging, Tianjin, Guangzhou, Hong Kong and Macau. Such an extensive
network enables the Group to efficiently respond to customer needs and deepen its market

penetration in China.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 2,067 retail outlets, comprising 1,877
concessionary counters and 190 retail shops in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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Financial Highlights
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Embry has a retail network of
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in more than 300 cities in China
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Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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Royal Bank of Canada Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BEN RS

e
EY::

To the shareholders of Embry Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Embry
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 124 to 196, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B ERHRE (&)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed

Key audit matter the key audit matter

Inventory provision

As at 31 December 2016, the
Group had net inventories of
HK$659,347,000, representing
66% and 26% of current assets
and total assets, respectively.
The estimation of the inventory

We tested the ageing analysis
of the Group's inventories. We
recalculated the inventory
provision under the Group's
policy and assessed the
assumptions being used in the
provision requires significant inventory provision calculation
management judgement, which by reviewing the basis, the
includes the recoverability of the rationale and the consistency of
cost of inventories, the nature the inventory provision policy,
and condition of inventories, the  considering the historical and
marketability of finished goods
and the future usage of raw

materials.

current inventory ageing
information and taking into
account the historical sales
pattern of aged inventories.
Related disclosures are included

in notes 3, 9 and 19 to the

financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BB HRE (8)

Key audit matters (continued)

BEREETEE )

How our audit addressed RMHE WG
Key audit matter the key audit matter BREEHEE RERRETERE
Fair value estimation of BREWMELIFEMNMGE
investment properties
As at 31 December 2016, the We considered the objectivity, NZE—XRNFEF+=2A BRACEZEEEEERM
Group had investment properties independence and expertise of =+—H ' BS£BE/IE FHNINBEERD

of HK$307,158,000, representing
18% and 12% of the Group's net
assets and total assets,
respectively. The estimation of
the fair value of investment
properties requires significant
management judgement. The
management uses external
valuers to support its
determination of the individual
fair value of the investment
properties.

Related disclosures are included
in notes 3, 9 and 17 to the
financial statements.

the external valuers used by
management, and assessed the
property related data, including
estimates used by the external
valuers. Such procedures
included comparing the rent
and term periods against the
existing lease agreements,
performing market research on
key valuation parameters
including the capitalisation rate
and market rent of similar
properties and performing a
sensitivity analysis on the fair
value estimation. We also
involved our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in
reviewing the external valuation
methodologies. We then
assessed the disclosures
relating to the assumptions
used in determining the fair
value.
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BB HRE (8)

Key audit matters (continued)

BEREETEE )

How our audit addressed R M= st
Key audit matter the key audit matter BRETTEE EEBEEtEE
Properties applying for building =EEEfARE
ownership certificates EA:OLJES
As at 31 December 2016, We evaluated the Assessment RZZE-—XNF+=-AF HZMBBEESE &
included in the Group's by reviewing the = B T E B8
leasehold land and buildings of  correspondence with the local 741,768,000 BT 7IE REBFEEZTHNIERDT
HK$741,768,000 were buildings  government authorities in T o BB F R R RREREFEST
in Mainland China of relation to the application 161,835,000 B AMKY BHER: LTAXE
HK$161,835,000 without the progress; performing physical PFRABEET ME BEY S£EE,E

building ownership certificates
(the “Buildings”). The
assessment on whether the
Group can obtain the building
ownership certificates for the
Buildings (the “Assessment”)
requires significant management
judgement. After (i) having
discussions with the relevant
government officials, (i)
obtaining correspondence from
the relevant regulatory bodies;
and (jii) taking advice from the
Group's legal counsel, the
management believes that it is
highly likely for the Group to
obtain these certificates.

Related disclosures are included
in notes 3 and 16 to the financial
statements.

observation of the Buildings;
and evaluating management’s
assessment of the Group's legal
risk, which included reference
to the legal opinion from the
Group's legal counsel.

Other information included in the Annual

Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not

cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.
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BB HRE (8)

Other information included in the Annual
Report (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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BB HRE (8)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the

audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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BB HRE (8)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Yee.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2017
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Consolidated Income Statement

= A ><
%ﬁmq&ﬁﬁ%E
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE=-T—"F+_A=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
Biat FET FHET
REVENUE g 5 2,216,082 2,535,818
Cost of sales SHE R AN (471,531) (466,222)
Gross profit EF 1,744,551 2,069,596
Other income and gains, net E WA R g - 6 52,763 45,046
Selling and distribution expenses PHE RS HEEY (1,377,636) (1,534,899)
Administrative expenses TR X2 (245,694) (267,369)
Other expenses Hiphixx 7 (7,274) (7,169)
Finance costs BbE AR 8 (8,263) (6,617)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBL AR R 9 158,447 298,588
Income tax expense PRSHRFX 12 (60,045) (97,014)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RDTHEEAENL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FEERF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 98,402 201,574
EARNINGS PER SHARE KATEB AE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO BRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 15
— Basic (HK cents) — F AR (B 23.62 48.38
— Diluted (HK cents) — 858 (B 23.62 48.38
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEETmRE

Year ended 31 December 2016 BE=-T—"F+_A=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—XE —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$’000
T8 TET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR R 98,402 201,574
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE Hith2ExH
Other comprehensive expense to be REZPREATEHRDBEEERED
reclassified to the income statement in Hip2HEH
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of TERINESEREEZ
foreign operations b S =R (117,655) (96,984)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AARBEEANEEFEE
INCOME/(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR 2EWA () 858

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY (19,253) 104,590
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e BRI AR

31 December 2016 —Z—F+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-XRE —ET-RF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WME - WENEE 16 1,062,213 977,465
Investment properties B 17 307,158 311,121
Prepaid land lease payments BN AR E SR IE 18 33,996 37,363
Deferred tax assets EEFIEEE 27 84,810 73,781
Deposits b 21 14,139 12,414
Total non-current assets EREBEERE 1,502,316 1,412,144
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 19 659,347 716,853
Trade receivables TEWEB SR 20 85,220 90,486
Prepayments, deposits and other TEREIE - Re REMER
receivables RIE 21 58,309 56,335
Cash and cash equivalents Re RINSEEY 22 190,187 233,017
Total current assets MBEERLE 993,063 1,096,691
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables ENE SER 23 87,678 68,206
Interest-bearing bank borrowings TERITER 24 133,278 124,878
Tax payable RS FIE 20,536 71,806
Other payables and accruals H A e A< BB B e AT RUE 25 274,174 230,033
Total current liabilities mEaGERE 515,666 494,923
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 477,397 601,768
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERTBHEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,979,713 2,013,912
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES HRBEM
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sFEIRITER 24 221,555 183,333
Deferred liabilities EEaE 26 1,889 3,083
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIEEE 27 36,782 36,673
Total non-current liabilities BB EAE 260,226 223,089
Net assets BEFE 1,719,487 1,790,823
EQUITY Ea
Equity attributable to owners AATEE AEMGER
of the Company
Share capital A& X 28 4,166 4,166
Reserves & 30 1,715,321 1,786,657
Total equity R 1,719,487 1,790,823

Ngok Ming Chu

E#E

Director

EE

Cheng Pik Ho Liza
BREE
Director

EE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARRBER

Year ended 31 December 2016 &

Eo%-

NETZA=T—RALFE

2016 S5 / LA

Attributable to owners of the Company

AR AT ’I 27

KO RERAER
Reserves
51
Enterprise
expansion
and
Share Asset  statutory Exchange Share
Share  premium Contributed revaluation ~ reserve fluctuation ~ Goodwill option  Retained Total Total
capital  account  surplus  reserve funds  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  reserves equity
Bt EEEf CERER  ERKD BRE
B& BER B8RS ik EERES ik  HERE fE  REER BRE aER
Notes ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
it FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note 30) (note 30) (note 30)
(Hiz£30) (Hiz£30) (Hiz£30)
At 1 January 2016 WZZ-RE-A-H 4166 369,644 122,610 3336 124849 35610 (3,168) 27,923 1,105,853 1,786,657 1,790,823
Profit for the year EFHR - - - - - - - - 98,402 98,402 98,402
Exchange differences related ~ TEBIMVEEFEL
to foreign operations ERizE - - - - - (117,655 - - - (117,655) (117,655)
Total comprehensive EnzEKA/ ()
income/(expense) for the year ek - - - - - (117,655) - - 98,402 (19,253)  (19,253)
Share options lapsed BRIRIEL N 29 - - - - - - - (27923 27,923 - -
2015 final and special dividends ~ SERZH=F—AF
declared and paid FEARFRIRE 14 - - - - - - - - (41,666)  (41,666)  (41,666)
2016 interim dividend T NERERE 14 - - - - - - - - (10,417)  (10,417)  (10,417)
Transfer from retained profits BHRBET - - - - 19,400 - - - (19,400) - -
At 31 December 2016 WZZ-RE
+-A=+-H 4166 369,644 122,610 3336 144,249 (82,045) (3,168) - 1,160,695 1,715,321 1,719,487
At 1 January 2015 WZZ-1E-A-H 4166 369,644 122,610 3,336 97,691 132,594 (3,168) 32,784 984908 1,740,399 1,744,565
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - - - 201574 201574 201574
Exchange differences related ERNEBRELL
to foreign operations ERER - - - - - (96,984) - - - (96,984)  (96,984)
Total comprehensive ER2ERN/(ZH)
income/(expense) for the year k) - - - - - (96,984) - - 201574 104590 104,590
Share options lapsed FRARIE 30 - - - - - - - (4.861) 4,861 - -
2014 final and special dividends ~ EiEEF [T =T —ME
declared and paid FRERERIRE 14 - - - - - - - - (41,666)  (41,666)  (41,666)
2015 interim dividend ZE-RERERS 14 - - - - - - - - (16666)  (16,666)  (16,666)
Transfer from retained profits EHREET - - - . 27,158 - - - (27,158) - -
At 31 December 2015 R-E—1%
+-A=1+-H 4166 369,644 122,610 3,336 124,849 35,610 (3,168) 27923 1,105,853 1,786,657 1,790,823
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ=—ZT— X F+=-A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—RE —RHF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
HfaE FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax o 25 Al s ) 158,447 298,588
Adjustments for: FHEE
Finance costs BRAER A 8 8,263 6,617
Bank interest income RITHBUA 6 (2,083) (2,255)
Depreciation e 9 53,476 49,533
Amortisation of prepaid land TE A ERIE 2
lease payments 5 9 928 974
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off of HE MEME  BER
items of property, plant and RBEE 2 E1E
equipment, net (Wzs) - %58 9 (278) 416
Provision for obsolete inventories, net [REFEEE @ F58 9 37,366 12,413
Impairment/(write-back of impairment B E S RFFE,
allowance) of trade receivables (RER fEREmE) 9 359 (17)
Changes in fair value of investment WEYHERNTEE
properties o) (13,000) (8,000)
243,478 358,269
Decrease/(increase) in inventories SR (3Ehn) 20,140 (6,647)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables fEWE SEEFR A3 1) 4,907 (508)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,  FEREUA « & K E A e W EUE
deposits and other receivables (g an) (3,761) 6,756
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B E ZEFIE I, CRd) 19,472 (78,321)
Increase in other payables and accruals i 1< 5k 18 I JE 5T 5K B A0 44,141 7,690
Decrease in deferred liabilities REEERD (1,194) (987)
Cash generated from operations IREFEIE & 327,183 286,252
Hong Kong profits tax paid BENEBENEH (802) (941)
Overseas taxes paid EREIMLIE (124,780) (98,469)
Net cash flows from operating activities 4% ¥ 2 R & i A F 5 201,601 186,842
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
mERERER (B

Year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ=—ZT— X F+=-A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—REF —hHEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
Wizt FETT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 F & 2,083 2,255
Additions to prepaid land lease TR LR E A
payments - (1,784)
Purchases of items of property, BEME  BEREREEE
plant and equipment 16 (210,720) (173,591)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE  BEMREER
property, plant and equipment 28 a 318 124
Net cash flows used in investing KRS RS RTFE
activities (208,319) (172,996)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ~ B&ZB B4%hE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings FTIBIRITIE K 196,013 371,838
Repayment of bank borrowings BB R1TET (149,391) (248,627)
Dividends paid B A 14 (52,083) (58,332)
Interest paid ERFE (8,263) (6,617)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BMEEE IS TAS
financing activities O ) #%8 (13,724) 58,262
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH BR&REESEEBY 2
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS g/ (Rd) BHE (20,442) 72,108
Cash and cash equivalents at FNZRELBALEEY
beginning of year 233,017 180,105
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EXBB 2B FHE
changes, net (22,388) (19,196)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERXRZEERBAEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 190,187 233,017
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRASEBULERZOW
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTH R 22 101,298 173,493
Non-pledged time deposits with REAKRIBRRDN=1EA
original maturity of less than three 2 EEHE TR
months when acquired 22 88,889 59,524
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 190,187 233,017
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31 December 2016 —Z—F+=-A=+—H

1.

2.1

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 August
2006 under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
the Cayman Islands and the principal place of business of
the Company is located at 7th Floor, Wyler Centre II, 200
Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 37 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Harmonious World Limited
("Harmonious World"), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), which is considered by the
directors as the Company’s ultimate holding company.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties which
have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000)
except where otherwise indicated.
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2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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2.1

2.2

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in the
consolidated income statement. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the consolidated income statement
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities:
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Applying the Consolidation
(2011) Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

(continued)

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
Amendments to HKAS 1, Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38 and certain amendments included in Annual

Improvements to 2012-2014 Cycle, the adoption of the

above new and revised standards has had no significant

financial effect on these financial statements.

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus

improvements in respect of the presentation and

disclosure in financial statements. The amendments

clarify:

(iii)

(iv)

the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

that specific line items in the income
statement and the statement of financial
position may be disaggregated;

that entities have flexibility as to the order in
which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

that the share of other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method must be presented
in aggregate as a single line item, and
classified between those items that will or will
not be subsequently reclassified to the
income statement.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the

requirements that apply when additional subtotals

are presented in the statement of financial position

and the income statement. The amendments have

had no significant impact on the Group's financial

statements.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that
are consumed through the use of the asset. As a
result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to
depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to
amortise intangible assets. The amendments are
applied prospectively. The amendments have had
no impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group as the Group has not used a revenue-
based method for the calculation of depreciation of
its non-current assets.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
issued in October 2014 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. Details of certain amendments
are as follows:

U HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations: Clarifies that
changes to a plan of sale or a plan of
distribution to owners should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal,
rather it is a continuation of the original plan.
Accordingly, there is no change in the
application of the requirements in HKFRS 5.
The amendments also clarify that changing
the disposal method does not change the
date of classification of the non-current assets
or disposal group held for sale. The
amendments are applied prospectively. The
amendments have had no impact on the
Group.
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2.3

Issued but Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) its Associate or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16 Leases®
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. The Group is not yet in a position to state
whether they would have a significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value
of the Group's previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in the income statement as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups
of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
party p
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

24 FESTTHEEME®)

BAEAL
ETWI&T BB A LSRR R EARE
EAERRE

@ AREALRZBALREMHALR
HEBE  MxBALT

(i) 22 ] Sk HL FHE I AN R
(i) HAREZRESEAZEN:

"
(il AAEEXAEBETRFH
TEEEEKE
%
(b) (WA TIEMAIGE - B A LR
BEE:
(i) ZEREAEHEBER —£H
ZHERF]
(i) —HEERES— aam%%

RAEKAEEE(RS—
BOBRR - WBRQ Tjﬂ

EWBATZHET)

(il ZEBRAEEHAER S
ZHREEDE

vy —HERBAE=-FEEMNS
Bh¥E ME—ERAZSE
ZHERMNBERR)

v) ZERAAEBEEHER
REBBEATZEE YR
;mﬂﬁﬂZﬁ&&ﬁﬂﬁ

(vi)  FZEBEH (@) EPTIA TIE

s RS

(vii)  R@O)IBFTIATHZEES
EEAXELBZER(N
ZERENEAR)TEER
BRE : &

(viii ZEBIHTMEEKEAR
TIREHIZEBAERBE T
AEB SR AEREZFAR]



'I 40 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

BN SRR PRt

I“/ =~

31 December 2016 —ZZ—~"F+=A _JF*EI

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FES:HEME(®)

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If
the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the income statement to the extent of
the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings  Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 4.5% to 20%
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 20%

office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and
equipment under construction, which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement
in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in finance costs for
loans and in administrative expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

J the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists
if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FES:HEME(®)

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the income statement. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to administrative
expenses in the income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value after making due allowances for obsolete or slow-
moving items. Cost is determined on the weighted average
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on the estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including
prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under
the operating leases are credited to the income statement
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FES:HEME(®)

(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside the income statement
is recognised either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Friest

Fref BE N REERIE - MRIEBHE
ANER 2 HE BB SRR BR A
2 E U NSl B B R R MRS o

BT IEE E R B E « IRTEHA AT (e R A M
BB M TFREEE S5 - UH/E
HHA&ERB R BRI BELECDEHR T
R(RBE)  BERREBEEBATERK
BTz 2B REFMETE -

EXEFRBERNZHRMRZABEEINEERA
ENHRERY B REIRREENAEY
5 RRRT IR S -

LﬁlﬁﬁTa?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ
o I\ETEU %%9‘\ :

. AERBEFUINZRH (RHER
3 A &2 8 & 51 A 3k AR i
MEBEEE) TOTHEREESXE
BEMELEZEERBERR &

. HHBERARZRERBZERNE
REREME  NEREHE 2 EOE
A FHEd] - BERZRR AR 88
R TR R A R o



'I 50 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

BAFs AR EE ()

31 December 2016 —Z—F+=-A=+—H

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

J when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Dividend income derived from the Company’s subsidiaries
in Mainland China is subject to a withholding tax under the
prevailing tax rules and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China ("PRC").
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FES:HEME(®)

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;
(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the

effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure
incurred in the construction cost of infrastructure projects,
are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an
asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and released to the income statement by way
of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“Equity-settled Transactions”).

The cost of Equity-settled Transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 29 to the financial statements.

The cost of Equity-settled Transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for Equity-settled Transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income
statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified, if the original terms of the award are
met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FES:HEME(®)

(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee are
not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as an
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of these
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentages of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or income statement is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or income
statement, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately or leased out separately under a
finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

TES B R M

RREAKBE 2 HHRRE  EEERY
WA BERABZHARBBELE
MAIE  URHRABEZRESHEEL
HIET AR REBRE - ZERERMAEFT 2T
PEIREAEEHTRARIFEEEL
BEZEREEFHENHE -

#

EEEREAAEE 5T BERRECIFL
AT B (MBS bt E) - BPBH
RNERZFARBKRERZEENT

RERNAR-AEEERLHBEA
AEBERET 2REMEESFLAR
MERD - AEBEEREBES LT ZIGRT R
Rtz A EERBELEROEBHEZY
R BARRNMAEARR KRB -

REVMFHEZXTERAYEDIE

AEBET -HVERENARREY
X YEHFTREMMEL AR - RE
MEDREBRES R RERNEETNHAE
ZUE B AREEEMEELHE
WEBINASEFENEBEEMELR
ERE REYMEBE D ARIES
SEAREMTE M HBOARLEE
SHEEMERBHITHAEMREE © i
ERSOAREMERESEFH L EH D
M AERBEAEBF AL o HE RS
MAREBEBLE  WERSERARLEER
HEE Y S IR AT & P AA L A% >
MBERTRAREDNE - AEEERYE
BRI IR T VR B - DAREE BB IR
EEFFEE  BHEZVETTARKRE
E



'I 56 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

BAFs AR EE ()

31 December 2016 —Z—F+=-A=+—H

3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences as at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

As explained in note 27 to the financial statements,
withholding tax is levied on dividends to be distributed by
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. Deferred tax is
provided, at the applicable withholding tax rate, on the
undistributed earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries that
would be distributed to their respective holding companies
outside Mainland China in the foreseeable future.

The Group's investment properties at fair value in Mainland
China are all held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation and they are considered to be held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Accordingly,
deferred tax on the Group's investment properties at fair
value is measured to reflect the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amounts of the investment
properties through use.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Fair value estimation of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources, including:

(a) by reference to independent valuations;

(b) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contracts), adjusted to
reflect those differences;
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value estimation of investment properties (continued)

(c) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dates of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(d) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts, and
(where possible) from external evidence such as
current market rates for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in
note 17 to the financial statements.

Properties applying for building ownership certificates
As of 31 December 2016, the Group had not obtained the
building ownership certificates for certain properties located
in Mainland China and was still in the progress of
completing the application of these certificates. After (i)
having discussions with the relevant government officials, (i)
obtaining correspondence from the relevant regulatory
bodies; and (iii) taking advice from the Group's legal
counsel, the Group believes that it is highly likely for the
Group to obtain these certificates. Thus, no impairment of
the aforesaid properties was considered necessary as of 31
December 2016. This is the best estimation by the
management based on current information. Further details
are given in note 16 to the financial statements.

Valuation of share options

The fair value of options granted under the share option
scheme is determined using the binomial model. The
significant inputs in determining the fair values include the
weighted average share price at the grant date, exercise
price, risk-free interest rate, dividend yield, expected
volatility, expected life of options, and exit rate of directors
and staff. Further details are given in note 29 to the financial
statements.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and 3.
Estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Inventory provision
The Group manufactures and sells goods and is subject to
changing consumer demands and fashion trends. As a
result, it is necessary to consider the recoverability of the
cost of inventories and the associated provision required.
When calculating the inventory provision, management
considers the nature and condition of inventories, as well as
applying assumptions around anticipated marketability of
finished goods and the future usage of raw materials.

4. Segment Information 4,
The Group's primary operating segment is the manufacture
and sale of ladies’ brassieres, panties, swimwear and
sleepwear. Since this is the only operating segment of the
Group, no further analysis thereof is presented. In
determining the Group's geographical information, the
revenue information is based on the locations of the
customers, and the total non-current assets information,
other than deferred tax assets, is based on the locations of

FTESHER A @)

fhet 2 FEABEE (&)

FERE

AEERENEERm UXEEEES
SJZ&HT%/EH/ALZ@T TKE’]?/E. .U:t ﬁ
FEZERFERARAIYLE LA & A E 8
HEREE R ETRERER EBES
EZEFEMNME MR - WEAENEK
migsHEHIE R R R A E0RR -

SEE R

AEBEZTELENHRXLWE - R
B KR EEXR ZRERBE - AR A
AEBME—RENE - MAE2 5 —
B2t REAKE 2R ERE - MK
S EMTDREPAEM AR - BIFERD
BECEEMBEEERIN BFHZEEMA
HARERE -

the assets.
Mainland China Hong Kong Others Total
EI KB a# Hits st
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RFf “Z-hE ZB-AE —T-1F ZB-R"E ~“ZT-1F ZB-RE —Z-1F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FEx T
Revenue from external IREP 2w
customers 2,129,821 2,431,547 81,177 99,007 5,084 5264 2,216,082 2,535,818
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,329,130 1,251,298 88,376 87,065 - - 1,417,506 1,338,363
Capital expenditure incurred  FRERFEZ
during the year 209,470 168,540 1,250 5,051 - - 210,720 173,591
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, as no Bz -T2 XREAR-_ZE—EF+=-A

revenue from sales to any customer of the Group has
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group's total
revenue, no information about major customers is presented
under HKFRS 8.

5. Revenue 5.
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns and trade discounts.

=t—HLEFE- EEEAZIS%@IﬁEH%
B 2 865 Wk {8 ) 1 7 5 B 48 M 2 10% JA
b B RRIBEFEV RS EAFE R
EREBEFHER -

u&\/
WaRtE MR ERERZGIMFERELE
DDZ%%@*'{E°



2016 3 / ZAFERER AT ’l 59

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

BA R FTaE (F8)

31 December 2016 —Z— X F+=-A=+—H

6. Other Income and Gains, Net

6. HARWYE  FHE

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—ARF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income HiA
Subsidy income* EN PN 39.477 39,076
Gross rental income AL PN 14,534 14,663
Contingent rents receivable in respective of &ZHEMEKRL A S
operating leases 784 842
Bank interest income HRITHLEWA 2,083 2,255
Royalty income HRRERA 278 161
Others HAh 4,460 1,766
61,616 58,763
Gains, net W FEE
Foreign exchange differences, net MEHER  #5 (22,131) (21,717)
Changes in fair value of investment KEMENTEZE (FF17)
properties (note 17) 13,000 8,000
Gain on disposal/write-off of items of HeE MEmE - BME&
property, plant and equipment, net HEEB 2N - JREE 278 -
(8,853) (13,717)
52,763 45,046
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies * UEHCANE B85 2 (T (] AR P 2 5 1
relating to this income. HAFIE -
7. Other Expenses 7. HEX
2016 2015
ZEB-XRF —“T-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Charitable donation BEBR 7.274 6,753
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE MEHME - BE &
property, plant and equipment, net HETBE 2R B - 416
7,274 7,169
8. Finance Costs 8. ®ERAK
2016 2015
—E-REF —T-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Total interest on bank loans RERITE TS 8,263 6,617
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9. Profit Before Tax

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

BB Al 28
REEZBBAEFENRGEA) |

(crediting):
2016 2015
—~EF —RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold* EEFERA* 471,531 466,222
Depreciation e 53,476 49,533
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments  F&{f -3t F & 008 2 # 54 928 974
Minimum lease payments under B J«}{T%Iﬁi‘“%fﬁi’]z
operating leases in respect of: REMEERE
Land and buildings T RETF 79,097 85,019
Contingent rents of retail outlets BERRINZEH
in department stores B A 545,052 636,453
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERIM(TEREES
directors’ and chief executive's RATBABH M — HaE 10) -
remuneration — note 10):
Wages and salaries ITERHS 618,736 671,427
Write-back of provision for RERG S B ERE
long service payments (697) (597)
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIGTEIHER 63,881 66,111
681,920 736,941
Auditor’s remuneration TZ BN BN < 2,980 3,170
Advertising and counter decoration expenses & & KB EHF 122,088 138,509
Provision for obsolete inventories, net RETFTERE F58 37,366 12,413
Impairment/(write-back of impairment FEWE 5 BRFURME,
allowance) of trade receivables** CRERERD) 359 (17)
Research and development expenditure MR EkAERAY 3,574 3,681
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off of items of HE M mE  MENEREER
property, plant and equipment, net 2R (k) FHE (278) 416
Foreign exchange differences, net EREZR  F5E 22,131 21,717
Gross and net rental income e WA B R FE (15,318) (15,505)
Changes in fair value of investment properties & & ¥ % A7 &% (13,000) (8,000)
Bank interest income HRITH B WA (2,083) (2,255)

*%k

The cost of inventories sold for the year included
HK$175,828,000 (2015: HK$162,118,000), relating to
staff costs, depreciation of manufacturing facilities,
minimum lease payments under operating leases in
respect of land and buildings and the net provision for
obsolete inventories, which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed above for each type
of expenses.

The impairment/(write-back of impairment allowance) of
trade receivables is included in “Administrative
expenses” on the face of the consolidated income
statement.

* EEGFEKRABIZFE TAA - 2iE
BITE iiﬁ&@%#&«%fﬂﬁﬁzﬁfﬁﬁ
HERBRFREGEREBFER
175,828,000;% 7w ( = £ — 7 F -
162,118,000,&7T) - B EI4AZE IV E iC
AU ERFEZ SR -

> EWE SRR E, (B
Ej) EE Ak A Meas £ BB
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10. ESERITHRARTH
Remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BIEEBBMAZIFERA A (BT
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of FE EHBRA(T ETREL) - FEBARME
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 5128 383(1)(a), (b), () B ()15 » AR AR (3
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1) EEEFZERDADIE 2 HBHENT ¢

(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees we 993 951
Other emoluments: Hi < -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R EYREA 9,032 6,896
Bonuses* TEAL* 4,031 7,497
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RN ET BIELR 36 36
14,092 15,380
* Executive directors of the Company are entitled to * RRBINITEFFBEREEA - M
bonus payments which are determined as a percentage TEAL 2 78 Allf2 75 22 (3] 5 7 12 ) Fil B —
of the profit after tax of the Group. EHDHETF -
The fair value of the share options granted in prior years, AR EBIAE MR RERNERE - H
which had been recognised in the income statement over NPERRLEBHETE -
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant.
2016 —B-RE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses contributions remuneration
-
RER RAER
ik BYRIE AL SRS b

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

Executive directors: HITEE :
Madam Ngok Ming Chu ERML L - 5,087 1,647 18 6,752
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza* [N o - 2,868 1,621 18 4,507
Ms. Lu Qun BELL - 1,077 763 - 1,840
- 9,032 4,031 36 13,099
Independent non-executive BUIHTEE
directors:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki BIRELE 331 - - - 331
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung TELE 331 - - - 331
Prof. Lee T. S. FREHR 331 - - - 331
993 - - - 993

993 9,032 4,031 36 14,092
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive's 10. EERTHARTM =)
Remuneration (continued)

2015 —E-H%F

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses contributions  remuneration

e

EIR BREF

wne B 14T RIS B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TBTL TET TET TET TET

Executive directors: BITEE
Madam Ngok Ming Chu ERRY Lt - 3,105 3,086 18 6,209
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza* BEELL! - 2,753 2,839 18 5,610
Ms. Lu Qun# R L - 1,038 1,572 - 2,610
- 6,896 7,497 36 14,429
Independent non-executive directors: B IFHITEE -
Mr. Lau Siu Ki BlaEns 317 - - - 317
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung TS E 317 - - - 317
Prof. Lee T.S. TREHF 317 - - - 317
951 - - - 951
951 6,896 7,497 36 15,380
# Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, a director of the Company, is * ARRIEFHEE LT TTHEL AR R A]
also the chief executive officer of the Company. AT ARE
# Ms. Lu Qun was appointed as an executive director of “ BHLZIR-_FE-—HF_H_AEZ
the Company on 2 February 2015. EREREIBITES -
There were no arrangements under which a director or the ARAMEAY EE TR ITHRAH 2 KEF
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration BRYALIH M2 ZHE -

during the year.
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11.

Five Highest Paid Individuals

11. ABEREHAL

The five highest paid employees during the year included FRNEEHERFATBE=Z2FF(_F
three (2015: three) directors, details of whose remuneration —RF:=8) EHFMFHBEER EXHE
are set out in note 10 to the financial statements above. MERMTI0HFML - FREHBME(ZZ
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining —HRF : WB)IIARABEEHITHEE 2
two (2015: two) highest paid employees who are neither SogEEZEHEMFEBNT

directors nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

2016 2015
S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F#Ex
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RELREWHE 2,854 2,641
Bonuses TE4L 1,393 2,123
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKE AR 61 78
4,308 4,842

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest FINER A TR Z EE S RIFTTHAER

paid employees whose remuneration fell within the BeFHEEABNT

following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

BEA™

2016 2015
—E—AE —E-hF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 %7t - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # 7T 2 1,500,000 % 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T = 2,000,000 % 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & 7CZ 2,500,000 7 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T Z 3,000,000 7 7T 1 1
2 2

The fair value of the share options granted in prior years, HREBHAERARERNBRE  H

which had been recognised in the income statement over NP EREEBHEE -

the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant.
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12. Income Tax 12. FrEH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BEAFERIIBRIBEFANGEFTEEBEEZ
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits ERFBRER - K165%( T — 1 &F:
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits 16.5%) Z TRV LBt - Eftbith 77 FERRTH
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of A MECIRAEELEEK MR B
tax prevailing in the regions in which the Group operates. IR ERETE o
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current — Hong Kong BEARIA — &8
Charge for the year FABIA 811 788
Overprovision in prior years W FE 2 BEEE (20) (20)
Current — Mainland China B AR 18 — A B K R
Charge for the year FABIA 72,844 90,509
Deferred (note 27) B (MaE27) (13,590) 5,737
Total tax charge for the year FEZBBELL 60,045 97,014
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit AARAR R EKXEBDHE QB e 2
before tax at the statutory rates for the regions in which the FEEMRRGHANGMAE 2 FHERS
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled BEFERAERREAE 2 HIER YR
to the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows: T
2016 2015
—E-AF —T—h%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before tax B RE A 158,447 298,588
Tax at the applicable rates AR RTE 21 42,977 77,595
Adjustments in respect of current tax of B HAR 2 BVEATH 18
previous periods (20) (20)
Income not subject to tax AR Z WA (495) (1,320)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR 2 B 8,499 5,965
Effect of withholding tax YR 2 R B E A AT
on the distributable profits of the Group's  2Ei& FIEUIFENT 2 F £
PRC subsidiaries - 11,028
Tax losses not recognised KERHIBEE 7,725 8,776
Others EAh 1,359 (5,010)

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate IRAREE 7 ERMEFE 2
a5z 60,045 97,014
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13. Related Party Transactions 13. BBAEALRE
(a)  In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) BZEFBREREMIBHATMRZZ
these financial statements, the Group had the Z9 0 AEBRFRRAEREBEAL
following material transactions with related parties EIIZEARSNOT

during the year:

2016 2015

—E—RF —ZE—hF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
liopea FET T#ET

Continuing transactions FELS

Purchases of furniture and MEAE N B E A &

decoration services for counters JE &2 BRI RS BRTS

and shops as well as different AR B ERRE

types of moulds from related

companies (i) 16,622 15,523
Rental expenses and utilities RAE N AWERIE 2

expenses for a property HeRAH*RBRX

charged by a related company (i) 272 1,204
Rental expenses for a warehouse ~ ANABEEWEAEEZ

charged by a director of HeM%

the Company (iii) 167 167
Consultancy fee to a controlling M AR AR AR 5

shareholder of the Company S ZERE (iv) 1,321 1,583

Notes: Wizt -

0] The purchases of furniture and decoration (i) AADE—RIZM R B E 2R
services for counters and shops as well as FTEENMMMUNTEEERIKL
different types of moulds from % B4 F & ¥} T REE B L L —E BB
55 ORI B 15 2 Rl (Duosiwiei Metal & Plastic BSMEATZE R RS
Products (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) and %1% B # FrEdms ORY) AR 2 5 KM
FIEZE 4 T2 R 2 Al (Changzhou Duosiwei Z MR AR TIZARAH
Furniture Decoration Construction Co., Ltd.), %ET‘E@&}E%Z%W&%@
related com’aanies controlled by a close family A 75 LA Ko = XB AUAR B {FRR B
member of Mr. Cheng Man Tai, a controlling %%3%1@%%%}%%21‘%5&
shareholder of the Company, Madam Ngok HE R _FE—RF+_H
Ming Chu and Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, two =T —BRNBERR &5
executive directors of the Company, were made 77,540,000 70 ( — T —H
according to the terms similar to those offered % 3,557,000 7T ) Jh 4K
by the Group’s independent suppliers. The - RENRFE A EIRK
balances owed to related companies as at 31 fBIE - ZEFHEONEREE
December 2016 amounted to HK$7,540,000 H 5 VEE fib B < 5708 K JE T 3K
(2015: HK$3,557,000) and were unsecured, I8 °
interest-free and repayable in accordance with
normal trading terms. The amounts have been
included in other payables and accruals as at the
end of the year.

(i) The rental expenses and utilities ex%enses (i) Hﬂﬁﬂﬁ?%ﬂﬁ%$§5%ﬂ%ﬁi
charged by BMZHZERER AR FEYNIE O S e
(Changzhou Embry Development Limited), a BRI TE S EA R LA
related company, which was controlled by Ms. WG+ 7 FE T 2 A
Cheng Pik Ho Liza, an executive director of the BERBEMNZAFTERGRER
Company, and close family members of Mr. AIER ¢ e R HE M X
Cheng Man Tai, a controlling shareholder of the DI2EERZTNEE - B
Company, Madam Ngok Ming Chu and Ms. HEWER _ZT—LF 0 f
Cheng Pik Ho Liza, two executive directors of — T HEILE  AEEEE
the Company, were determined with reference BRRBEREE R - %
to the then prevailing market conditions. The AT ANFOATRARE
Group entered into a new tenancy agreement R e

with the related company effective from 10 April
2016 subsequent to the termination of the
previous tenancy agreement on 31 May 2015.
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13. Related Party Transactions (continued)

13. EBREATRF &)

(a)  (continued) (a) (&)

Notes: (continued) Btat : (%)

(iii) The rental expenses were charged by Madam (iii) 4B I hAATSTES
Ngok Ming Chu, an executive director of the ERG LB R E SR
Company, and determined with reference to the TREF o
then prevailing market conditions.

(iv) Mr. Cheng Man Tai, a controlling shareholder of (iv) A AR R R TR e
the Company, had been engaged as a —E - ME=R-+FHAMRE
consultant of the Company for a term of one EREARNTIER A —E
year with effect from 25 March 2014 and has THpE -—FT—hF=A
been re-engaged for second and third terms of T HAR-—E—ANE=A
one year effective from 25 March 2015 and 25 —HAEE - ERE-REE
March 2016, respectively. The terms of JE A HA—4F o AR B IKH 2
consultancy fee were based on consultancy RAE AN = F ] AN T 1A A B
agreements entered into between the Group B R Y ST o
and Mr. Cheng Man Tai.

The above transactions constitute continuing BEFTHASE14AE U LTS

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of EREEEES S BEEERR

the Listing Rules and their details are disclosed in the EEOHENPE o

report of the directors.

The directors are of the opinion that the above EEZA LSS ERAEER Y

transactions were conducted in the ordinary course WLBIOhELT o

of business of the Group.

(b) Compensation of key management (b) AEETESEAS>EH
personnel of the Group

2016 2015

—E-REF —T—hfF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET T#ET

Short term employee benefits SRR 19,510 21,610

Post-employment benefits BEEL 18 1R A 270 331

Total compensation paid to YNFEBEEAB 2 AHEN

key management personnel 19,780 21,941

Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration are included in note 10 to the financial
statements.

EERTRAHEFMOFITRN Y
BRAMFEI10 -
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14. Dividends

15.

14. RE

2016 2015
—E-REF —Z—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividends paid during the year FREMNRE
Final and special in respect of the BHEe-_Z—FRAF+-A=+—H
financial year ended 31 December 2015 1E I R ER R A Rl AR 2
— HK9.0 cents and HK1.0 cent, — DRI RERE B 9.0 K&
respectively, per ordinary share 1.0 (=2 —0F:
(2015: 31 December 2014 — HK8.0 cents —E-ME+-_A=+—H
and HK2.0 cents, respectively, — DRI AERE B 8.0/
per ordinary share) K. 2.07A) 41,666 41,666
Interim — HK2.5 cents (2015: FHARE B — SR AR 2.5 781
HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share (ZE—FRF :4.0510L) 10,417 16,666
52,083 58,332
Proposed final dividend BIRARHRE
Final — HK4.3 cents per ordinary share RERE — A
(2015: Final and special — HK9.0 cents BigE@mR4.381
and HK1.0 cent, respectively, (ZZ—1F  RERERIRE
per ordinary share) — DR RERCE R .08
K 1.07%4L) 17,916 41,666

The proposed final dividend for the year, with a scrip
dividend alternative, is subject to the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the final

dividend payable.

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Owners 15.

of the Company

The calculation of the basic earings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$98,402,000 (2015: HK$201,574,000)
and 416,661,000 (2015: 416,661,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015.

FRRRARHBE (A LR B HERE)
ARFARBBERNEERRBFAS L4t
e o REPTEHRR WA RIRER RIS,

RRAERABREEBRERN

REERBFDIREBEFAERRGIEE AR
1t 3 798,402,000 ;o ( — F — F F
201,574,000 7L ) R F A E 817 & @R
416,661,000 [ (ZZE—HF : 416,661,000

BORE -

AEERBE_T—R"F+-_A=1+—H
FTFEMBE_ZT—AF+-_A=1+—H
I FEYESHFTECETEL B -
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. Y% BERRXR®E
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
landand  Leasehold  Plantand  and office Motor  Construction
buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
i RE

BEtH  HENE BER  RMAE
REF 1 HE B RE REBIR &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
FiE7 FiEx T FiE7 T FiE7 FiEx

31 December 2016 —E-XEt-A=t-H
Cost: A
At 1 January 2016 WZE-"5-F-H 906,124 3,690 106,558 206,827 16,949 38,969 1,279,117
Additions WE 196 - 2,530 38,193 1,492 168,309 210,720
Disposals/write-off e - - (6) (9,716) (2,572) - (12,294)
Transfers K 817 - 1,508 1,928 - (4,253) -
Exchange realignment [ A (58,502) - (7,340) (14,384) (804) (11,712) (92,742)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+ZA=1+-H 848,635 3,690 103,250 222,848 15,065 191,313 1,384,801
Accumulated depreciation:  ZFHFE
At 1 January 2016 RZE-E-F—-H 94,752 3,690 53,427 137,952 11,831 - 301,652
Provided during the year Enik 18,759 - 7,563 25,512 1,642 - 53,476
Disposals/write-off HE /W - - (6) (9,691) (2,557) - (12,254)
Exchange realignment [ A& (6,644) - (4,002) (9,046) (594) - (20,286)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+ZA=1-H 106,867 3,690 56,982 144,727 10,322 - 322,588
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"ETZA=1-H 741,768 - 46,268 78,121 4,743 191,313 1,062,213
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
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16. ¥ BERRE#®

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
landand  Leasehold ~ Plantand  and office Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
R RE
ilaw HENZ BER RFLE
RigF % B & 5B EETE &3
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TEL TET TET TAL TET
31 December 2015 —E-1E+-A=t-H
Cost; A
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-nF-f—-H 682,935 3,690 103,121 183,795 15,951 204,093 1,193,585
Additions NE - - 11412 25,935 2,744 133,500 173591
Disposals/write-off HE /i - - (4,928) (8,362) (979) - (14,269)
Transfers K 271,789 - 3,483 16,865 - (292,137 -
Exchange realignment ERAE (48,600) - (6,530) (11,400) (767) (6,487) (73,790)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=1+-H 906,124 3,690 106,558 206,827 6,949 38,969 1,279,117
Accumulated depreciation:  ZEHTE -
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE-nF-F-H 81,159 3,690 54,157 131,681 609 - 282,296
Provided during the year FREE 18,490 - 7,249 22,082 1,712 - 49,533
Disposals/write-off HE /i - - (4,620) (8,150) (959) - (13,729
Exchange realignment [ i 5% (4,897) - (3,359) (7,661) (531) - (16,448)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-R&+-A=1-H 94,752 3,690 53,427 137,952 11,831 - 301,652
Net book value: BHFE:
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=1+-H 811,372 - 53,131 68,875 5118 38,969 977,465
At 31 December 2016, the Group was still in the progress RZE—XRE+-_A=+—8 KE£E)

of obtaining the building ownership certificates for certain
buildings in Mainland China with a net book value of
approximately HK$161,835,000 (2015: HK$177,091,000). In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, there is no

major barrier for the Group to obtain these building

ownership certificates.

EREAEMNPEAEFNOBEDENFE
EmEREZTE

F (B %@161,835,000,% 71( - =

177,091,000 7T) ©
%?ﬁﬂx%éﬁ%%%%%ﬁﬁﬁ%%lﬁ
BABERE

ZEMENRKRE
T%%.: Vol $
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17.

Investment Properties

17. REWE

2016 2015

—REF —Z-nF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RBZEmEE 311,121 318,699
Changes in fair value (notes 6 and 9) NEEE) (6 29) 13,000 8,000
Exchange realignment BE i, #E (16,963) (15,578)

Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+—A=+—RAZEmE 307,158 311,121
The Group's investment properties are situated at 6th Floor, AEBZIREWED HIL N E B R
Wyler Centre II, 200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New REBEHBE 2005 ERmP L 2H6ERHE
Territories, Hong Kong and certain floors of the building BTG ERERKS8RZAEES TEE -

located at No. 508, Kunming Road, Yangpu District,

AEEZREMRTIRIETHEOHFE

Shanghai City, the PRC and are held under medium term

leases.

The Group's investment properties situated in Hong Kong REBZREMEDBILNEERFPEKR
and Mainland China were revalued on 31 December 2016 FERBEXAERGEEMITEERITAE
based on valuations performed by DTZ Cushman & PRARIE, -

Wakefield Limited, a firm of independent professionally

qualified valuers.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be BF  AEEZBEINESEEMEEHAE
responsible for the external valuations of the Group's B 2 MEEITINEDGME - SN BNV ER
properties. Selection criteria of an external valuer include FEEABREMSNE B2 BUMENE
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether LA RIFEEZE - ERETFMAAF
professional standards are maintained. The management BN F R RE F'Eﬁ;fﬂﬁﬁﬂ-iriﬁ\ﬁﬁ
discusses with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and B A E R AR R A A RETTR

valuation results twice a year when the valuation is

performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation technique TEEB2EEREALRES - NEFY
used in prior years. In estimating the fair value of the EZRTEBER  BEMEz&ER&E
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is REREERARE -

their current use.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under REMEUNKEHERTE=7 HFHE
operating leases, further summary details of which are AR B wEMTT31@) ©

included in note 31(a) to the financial statements.

Fair value hierarchy REEESER

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 RZB-RF+_A=+—BEZZE—1
December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are estimated by FH-A=1+—8 A&EEUEARTAE
using significant unobservable inputs and the fair value ﬁﬁk%ﬂﬁfﬁ%‘l‘Z&ﬁ%%Z NFEE M

measurements are categorised under Level 3.

NPEEFEDENRE=FIET -
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17. Investment Properties (continued) 17. REWYXE &)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEBEZSH &)

Reconciliation of fair value measurement categorised within NATEBEEZERE="FAPEZAEEE

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: = HEE -

Hong Mainland
Kong China
o P KB
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T

Carrying amount at 1 January 2015 R-ZZE-AF—A—HZKRHE 57,000 261,699

Changes in fair value recognised in AU R = A TR
the income statement NEBEEES) 8,000 -

Exchange realignment PE 5 FE 2 - (15,578)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2015 and HR-Z—RAF+_A=+—HK
at 1 January 2016 —E-RE-A-BZKRHE 65,000 246,121

Changes in fair value recognised in Pl Es R A RER
the income statement NEEBEZS) 3,000 10,000

Exchange realignment BE i A EE - (16,963)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 RZE—ARF+=ZRA=+—H

2 BREE 68,000 239,158

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FRNBF-REE_FoAREEBRAT

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no BEFAE TEEAZ=FNBF=RH

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil). H(ZZE—RF 8|)o

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and UTREEDELEEREERERETE

the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: BMABIEZHME

Significant
Class of property Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs  Range of unobservable inputs
MEER hEFE EXTAHERARE FTUBEBARBEE
2016 2015
—E-XREF —ZE—nF

Hong Kong Market comparable Gross unit rate HK$2,600- HK$2,500~
— Commercial properties method per square feet HK$2,700 HK$2,600
— Level 3 (note i)

N MmSLBOA R HRBEMER 2,600/~  2,500/&7T-
—ARmE (Krati) 2,700 T 2,600 7T
—B=#8

Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate 4%-5% 4%-5%
— Commercial properties approach per annum (note ii)

— Level 3

I K B WABE R IE BEERE (M Fii) 4%-5% 4%-5%
—ERAYE
—E=

Notes: Hiat

it The higher the gross unit rate per square feet, the i FYTRAEMEELS A TFES

il

o

higher the fair value.

FERLERMS A TFEMIE-

el

ii. The higher the capitalisation rate per annum, the lower ii.
the fair value.
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18. Prepaid Land Lease Payments

19.

18. ENL#BEENRE

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—ARF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost: IDNE
At 1 January wW—HA—H 42,871 43,755
Additions INE - 1,784
Exchange realignment Rk (2,858) (2,668)
At 31 December Rt+—B=+—H 40,013 42,871
Amortisation: WY -
At 1 January wW—HA—H 4,569 3,859
Recognised during the year FAMER 928 974
Exchange realignment P& N %L (357) (264)
At 31 December Rt+—B=1+—H 5,140 4,569
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+-—A=+—HZEEE 34,873 38,302
Current portion included in prepayments, HATERNZIE - R REMREK
deposits and other receivables (note 21) a7 BNERER D (faE21) (877) (939)
Non-current portion JEBNHRER (7 33,996 37,363

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 3 March
2017, the Group entered into agreements with the Land
and Resources Bureau of Zhangqgiu Municipality, Jinan City
to acquire land use right of two pieces of land located in

RBERERE R_E—tF=A=

B AREEEEHECRELERRD

]

S PA#R (B 12,090,000 A B8 (4
13,433,000 8 70 ) Y BB AL 70 1L R & O R I8 £

Shandong Province at a total consideration of HOHY T b R o
RMB12,090,000 (approximately HK$13,433,000).
Inventories 19. ®&
2016 2015
—E-REF —ZT—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R 60,309 35,480
Work in progress TERR 39,633 41,686
Finished goods Bk M 559,405 639,687
659,347 716,853
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20.

Trade Receivables

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for wholesalers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The credit period is generally for a
period of one month, extending up to three months for
major customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables by the sales department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

20.

FEWE 5 AR X
AEETZUEERPABEFETE
o HE-REERPEFRENAR - EE
H—RA—EA ETEXFPZEEHAA
=fEA - NERBEZHEREIZERE

FEURIR - OBEEE R - BHIA&RRH

= AR E B E IR o R ESCAT A R
SEZRERKRESERSI RS T2 EPR
AEPABRZ  HUBEERESHTZ
[\ o AN SR B R B H R WE B RR B
FAEEMERRSKEMEENRERE - &
WE 5 AE R

AEERHEHRGEE B 2 RKE SRR
RBEZEMZRESTOT

2016 2015

~ X — a4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 90 days 90 HA 79,516 86,886
91 to 180 days 91% 180 H 5,704 3,600
181 to 360 days 181 %360 H 977 1,017
Over 360 days 360 A E 1,057 658
87,254 92,161

Less: Impairment allowance B BERHE (2,034) (1,675)
85,220 90,486

At 31 December 2016, trade receivables of HK$2,034,000
(2015: HK$1,675,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired trade receivables relate
to customers that were in financial difficulties and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

RZZE—RE+ZA=+T—H KEEHE
FIETETURENEKREZERE
2,034,000 (ZF—HF : 1,675,000
7e) ° ERIRE R E 5 R E H R S H
#MEPF AR TEHR U E R EIRER

N
N
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20. Trade Receivables (continued) 20. EWEZERER#)
Movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables BB SRR REREESIT
are as follows:
2016 2015
—E—XRE —ZE—hF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET T
At 1 January Hw—H—H 1,675 1,692
Impairment losses recognised/(written back) JF{EEEHR, (=) (Kz9)

(note 9) 359 (17)
At 31 December R+—_A=1+—H 2,034 1,675
An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not BAERARRIE 2 R E 5 R R ER D AT 10
considered to be impaired is as follows: AN

2016 2015

—F-RF —T-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TET

Neither past due nor impaired KR ER IR AR B E 79,516 86,886
1 to 3 months past due @1 EAZE3EA 5,704 3,600
85,220 90,486

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

REMARBEEREKESERIEAE
MY EEN SR ZEZEPAR -

EEHERREZERKRESRERTES H
HASBEERRIFTERBCBIRE,E

B> RIBAERR  ANEEERL AL
REXNEE  BEBARDEESTEH

Wm - AR EER BB ARZTERE
HRE R -
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21. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 21. A EHE- e R HEMEWE
Receivables i}
2016 2015
—E—XRE —ET—hHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Prepaid land lease payments (note 18) JEfR A S Z0E (K 18) 877 939
Deposit paid and related direct cost Ue BB LR s e
for the land use right in Shandong mEREEEEER 2,340 2,507
Deposits for acquisition of items of WM - BE RRBIEE
property, plant and equipment [EENE A 11,799 9,907
Prepayments FERRIE 16,059 15,494
Deposits and other receivables e R EH A IS 41,373 39,902
72,448 68,749

Current portion included in prepayments, T ATBfIFIE « 2& R EfM

deposits and other receivables R R TE 2 BNERER 1 (58,309) (56,335)
Non-current portion JERNERED D 14,139 12,414
None of the financial assets included in the above balances Ll e mEEBES HSRE - 5
is either past due or impaired. The financial assets included ALiESRNEREERFKOREGHERD
in the above balances relate to receivables for which there FEUFIE o

was no recent history of default.

22. Cash and Cash Equivalents 22. BEeRAESEEY

2016 2015

= —THF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET TET

Cash and bank balances Ne RIBITER 101,298 173,493
Non-pledged time deposits with original REARREEA ALK =1EA

maturity of less than three months 2 EERTE TR
when acquired 88,889 59,524

Cash and cash equivalents ReRIRGEEY 190,187 233,017
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22.

23.

Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“"RMB")
amounted to HK$179,009,000 (2015: HK$220,374,000).
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies; however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are normally
made for varying periods of between approximately one
day and three months on average depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

Trade Payables
An aged analysis of the Group's trade payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is

22.

23.

RERREEEW @)
AEERFEPRREEAUAARKIEZ
Re MIRITA 85 179,009,000/87T (= F
— R4 : 220,374,000 7T) - ARERET
AERLRAREMERE MERBEPBIKE
ZHNEEEAZHE] - AR AETE - EIE RATIE
BEBATE  AEEEESBEREEITIN
ERXFEBZRTBGARBLBREEME
e;qg o

RITEFRBEERRITERMNEREE 2%
BHXREE - RHEMETREFARH
HW—RE=EANE BFAEEERZ
REBRME - WA 2B HERFH
MERETE - RITERTF RN HIIL EE D
FCERZ EBRAFIRTT

P B 7 BR K
AEERGEBRLEE 2 BN B SRR
BEERAHERATMT -

as follows:
2016 2015
—B-AF —hfF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 90 days 90HA 80,240 60,837
91 to 180 days 912180 H 3,051 3,424
181 to 360 days 181360 H 2,018 1,207
Over 360 days 360 HA = 2,369 2,738
87,678 68,206

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 30 to 90 days terms.

e E SRR 5T R
lem/ﬁ °©

» —MRFA30E90 H
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24. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 24, THERITEXR
2016 2015
ZB-RE —E-n%
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HK$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
EBA= VS
(%) 3B TiEx (%) el AL
BB
B¥FE+1.752
BRBT BB
F%#5+2.25 RERE+1.082
Hong Kong Interbank BARRIT
Current Ik Offered Rate F%RE+2.25
Bank loans BTER (“HIBOR")+1.75 to 2017 HIBOR+1.08 to 2016
— unsecured —EER HIBOR+2.25 ZE—tF 133,278 HIBOR+2.25 ZERF 124,878
BB BART
F#H5+1.85F RERE+1.852
BB BART
Non-current E: L R¥HE+1.95 2018-2021 R 5 +2.25 2017-2020
Bank loans RITER HIBOR+1.85 to “E-\fE HIBOR+1.85 to Tt EER
— unsecured —EER HIBOR+1.95 ZE--F 221,555 HIBOR+2.25 “T-%F 183,333
2016 2015
—E-XRF —E-nfF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FH#ET
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: RT3 ERER 2 RITER -
Within one year —F R 133,278 124,878
In the second year F_F 57,278 37,778
In the third to fifth years, inclusive BE_ZENF (BHEEREFE) 164,277 145,555
354,833 308,211
Less: Amount repayable within one year B RN —FREEILT R
and classified as current portion BIEAER D 258 (133,278) (124,878)
Amount classified as non-current portion 5 RIERNEREL S & 5 221,555 183,333
The above bank loans are denominated in Hong Kong FPRRITERIAB T ELREBRITH
dollars and bear interest at rates ranging from 1.75% to EHREFMNEMISERE225EHE (=
2.25% above the HIBOR per annum (2015: 1.08% to 2.25% T—RF  REBRITRZREFNEN

above the HIBOR per annum). 1.08[EZE 2255 8) °
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25. Other Payables and Accruals 25. HENRIBEREFIA
2016 2015
S L
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Other payables Hib et zrE 107,367 105,596
Accruals FEEH A 166,807 124,437
274,174 230,033
The amounts of HK$7,540,000 (2015: HK$3,557,000) N5 B E At JE (T SRIB PR 3E Y 7,540,000
included in other payables of the Group were due to related B (ZZF—HF : 3,557,00087T) BN
companies as at 31 December 2016. These balances were E-RFTA=+—RHENBERRZ
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in accordance with B ZEEHRABEER 2B NFEH—
normal trading terms (note 13(a)(i)). MREBIEREZ (HFE13@)0) °
Other payables are non-interest-bearing. HipERIBR/TES ©
26. Deferred Liabilities 26. EEEE

Deferred liabilities represent the estimated provision in
respect of long service payments which may become
payable in the future under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance to employees in proportion to their periods of
services with the Group up to the end of the reporting
period.

ELREERERSHHEERRRES
R E 2 Bt EE - RERBEAIEAR
BERERBHRIZEERAKREZFEM
mEE ST

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-RE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET F#ET

At 1 January n—HA—H 3,083 4,070
Write-back of provision for the year (note 9) 4/ » B E (f1:£9) (697) (597)
Payments during the year FE2MAZ (497) (390)
At 31 December Rt+_A=1+—H 1,889 3,083
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27. Deferred Tax 27. EEBLIIA
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during FRECHBEEREEZHWT :

the year are as follows:

Withholding
Depreciation taxes on
allowance in undistributed ~ Temporary ~ Withholding
excessof  Unrealised profitson  difference taxeson  Deferred
Revaluation related profit of PRC  of provisions interest subsidy
of properties depreciation inventories  subsidiaries and accruals income income Others Total
TEARE HEHEAT BER

Fatabiil AEE AORER  EERE AERA i1
NEEM & BRER JENB  2EREE CEAR RER At #it
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAET TET TiET TET TR TET TAET TET TET

At1 January 2015 Wo2-1F
-A-A 1898 1598 (35079) 8404 (30350) 21 (6,704) - (39.968)

Deferred tax charged/ ~ ERENEEIR/
(credited) to the income (%) ZEIEHE
statement during the year ~ (#7i£12)

(note 12) - 99 (6,824) 11,028 1,220 176 149 711) 5737
Payments during the year ~ R4 - - - 4,686) - (655) - - (5,341)
Exchange realignment ERAE (113) - 2,331 (1.918) 1,764 (19 394 25 2464
At31 December 2015and  H=Z—R%E

1 January 2016 +ZA=t+-A

RZE-1E
—-A-H 1,785 1,697 (39,568) 32,828 (27,366) 363 (6,161) (686) (37,108)
Deferred tax charged/ ENERERNR/

(credited) to the income (%) ZEIEFIE

statement during the year  (#f3£12)

(note 12) 2,500 99 (2,898) - (14,767) 656 142 678 (13,590
Payments during the year ~ FR Y f - - - - - (677) - - (677)
Exchange realignment AR (258) - 2,799 (2,188) 2,606 (23) 403 8 3,347

At 31 December 2016 RZE-RF
+-A=+-H 4,027 1,796 (39,667) 30,640 (39,527) 319 (5,616) - (48,028)
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27.

Deferred Tax (continued)
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of
the Group for financial reporting purposes:

EEFIE (&)
T AREmG SRR S 2 EERE
S -

2016 2015
—RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
Deferred tax assets recognised in the iR MR R R

consolidated statement of financial position HIEEE (84,810) (73,781)

Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the PR E MR RER Z B
consolidated statement of financial position FiIE& & 36,782 36,673
(48,028) (37,108)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$219,939,000 (2015: HK$174,320,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group also has tax losses arising in Macau of
HK$14,083,000 (2015: HK$12,433,000) that will expire in
three years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in the Company and
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and
it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective

from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rates are 5% and 10%. In estimating the
withholding taxes on dividends expected to be distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the
directors have made assessment based on the factors which
included dividend policy and the level of capital and working
capital required for the Group's operation in the foreseeable
future.

At 31 December 2016, the aggregate withholding tax
amount arising from the temporary differences associated
with these subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$18,351,000 (2015: HK$12,496,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

AREBRBEBEEAZHBEBY
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P9 EE A4 i 7B 5 4814,083,0008 T ( — &
— A% : 12,433,000/ 7L) * HTR=FEXNE
o AT E A BB R A KRR ERF R
F) o mma:gﬁnxgaﬁwgﬁ—&
H?Fﬁzz’gi\\jﬁlzﬁ% TH%&WU%—J
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28.

29.

Share Capital 28. A
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—ARF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: ERE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 %
HK$0.01 each GREEO0.01 BT B 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BT REUE
416,661,000 (2015: 416,661,000) 416,661,000 (=T —H4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 416,661,000 %) XA
0.01 B TR AR 4,166 4,166

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18
December 2006 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group.

Share Option Scheme

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include, (i)
any employee (whether full time or part time, including
directors but excluding any non-executive director) of the
Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity; (ii) any non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or invested
entity; (iii) any supplier or customer of the Group or any
invested entity; (iv) any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to
the Group or any invested entity; (v) any shareholder of any
member of the Group or any invested entity or any holder
of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
invested entity; (vi) any advisor (professional or otherwise)
or consultant to any area of business or business
development of the Group or any invested entity; (vii) any
other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance
or other business arrangement to the development and
growth of the Group; and (viii) any company wholly-owned
by one or more eligible participants as referred in to (i) to
(vii) above. The Share Option Scheme became effective on
18 December 2006 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for a period of ten years to 17
December 2016.

29.
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29.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. Share options
granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company'’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, which period may commence
from the date of the offer of the share options, and ends on
a date which is not later than ten years from the date of the
offer of the share options or the expiry date of the Share
Option Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company's shares as quoted on the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of the
offer of the share options; (i) the average closing prices of
the Company's shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

29.
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29. Share Option Scheme (continued) 29. BRESTE(w)
Share Option Scheme (continued) BEIRRESTE (&)
Set out below are the outstanding share options under the UTREINR_E—AR"F+_A=1+—H0
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2016: REREET &I T M AR I T (B R AR A -
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
At Granted Lapsed  Exercised At price of
Name or 1January  during during during 31 December Date of grant of Exercise period of share
category of participant 2016 the year the year the year 2016 share options share options options
HK$
per share
RZB-RF RZB-RF BRE
SRERERER —-A—-B FR&H FRAXM FREBE t-A=1+-H BRERLAH BRETRE fieE
SRET
Executive directors
HTES
Madam Ngok Ming Chu 60,000 - (60,000) - - 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
ERGLT “2-—-5RA+N\B ZB-ZFIATN\BEZE
“E-RERATER*
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza 1,460,000 - (1,460,000) - - 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
B2 ZE-—-FRA+NH ZEBE-ZERATNEE
“E-RERATLEAY
Ms. Lu Qun 540,000 - (540,000) - - 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
BELL “2-—-5RA+N\B ZB-ZFIATN\RE
“E-RERATER*
Independent non-executive
directors
BUFRTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ki 100,000 - (100,000) - - 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
BIRELE “2-—-5RA+N\B ZB-ZFIATN\BEZE
“E-AERATER*
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 100,000 - (100,000) - - 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
FHERE ZE--FRA+tNH ZB-ZERATNEE
“E-RERATLEAY
Prof. Lee T.S. 100,000 - (100,000) - - 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
FREYR “2-—-5RA+N\B ZB-ZFIATN\BEZE
“E-AERATER*
Other employees
Hitfg s
In aggregate 11,120,000 - (11,120,000) - - 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
@i “E-—-§RA+N\A ZE--FRA+NHEZE
“E-RERATLEAY
Others 35,000 - (35,000) - - 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
Hit “2--5RA+N\B ZB-ZFIATN\BEZE

ZE-RERATER*

13,515,000 - (13,515,000) - -
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29. Share Option Scheme (continued) 29. BREFE (%)
Share Option Scheme (continued) E%H’y}ifgé-l-iﬂ )
Set out below are the outstanding share options under the UTFEHIWAR —_E—RF+_A=+—RH
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2015: J]ﬂééaﬂ%ﬂ—l?r:‘-ﬁiﬂ{iﬁﬁﬂ
Number of share options
BREHA
Exercise
At Granted Lapsed  Exercised At price of
Name or 1 January during during during 31 December Date of grant of Exercise period of share
category of participant 2015 theyear  theyear the year 2015 share options share options options
HK$
per share
RZE—h%F RZE—R%F FRivE
SEELEGER —-A-B FRRE  FAXR FAEIR +ZA=t-A BERLAH BT tcd
BET
Executive directors
HTES
Madam Ngok Ming Chu 60,000 - - - 60,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
ERGLL “T—%8A+N\B ZEF-Z§1A+N\BE
“E-AFRATER*
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza 1,460,000 - - - 1,460,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
BEERT “F-—FBEA+N\B ZE-Z#TATN\BE
—T—R"FRAt+tA*
Ms. Lu Qun 540,000 - - - 540,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
BELL “T—F8A+N\B ZT-=§RA+N\BE
ZE-R"FRATtA*
Independent non-executive
directors
BUFHITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ki 100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
BRELE —T—F8A+N\B ZT-Z§1A+N\BE
“E-RERATER*
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
FHELE “F-—%EA+tN\B ZE-Z#1A+N\BE
—T—xFRAt+tB*
Prof. Lee T. S. 100,000 - - - 100,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
FREYR —F—F8A+N\B ZET-ZFHA+N\BE
“E-RFRATLA*
Other employees
HibES
In aggregate 13,490,000 - (2,370,000) - 11,120,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
@t “F-—FEA+tN\B ZE-Z#TA+N\BE
—T—x"FRA+tR*
Others 35,000 - - - 35,000 18 May 2011 18 May 2012 to 5.24
17 May 2016*
Hity —T—F8A+N\B ZET-Z§1A+N\BE

“E-RERATLA*

15,885,000 (2,370,000) - 13,515,000
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29.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options under the Share
Option Scheme outstanding during the year:

* The share options were vested to the grantees in the
following manner:

- 30% of such options were vested on 18 May 2012
with an exercise period from 18 May 2012 to 17
May 2016;

- 30% of such options were vested on 18 May 2013
with an exercise period from 18 May 2013 to 17
May 2016; and

- the remaining 40% of such options were vested on
18 May 2014 with an exercise period from 18 May
2014 to 17 May 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, 20,355,000 share
options were granted and their fair value was estimated at
approximately HK$41,952,000 (approximately HK$2.06
each). With reference to the vesting period, the Company
recognised all share option expenses in prior years.

The fair value of the share options was estimated as at the
date of grant, using a binomial model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model

used:

Dividend yield (%) 1.5
Expected volatility (%) 52
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.64
Expected life of options (years) 5
Exit rate — directors (%) 0
Exit rate — staff except directors (%) 14
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 5.24

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome. The exit rate is
based on the historical data on staff/director turnover rates.

No other feature of the share options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.
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29.

30.

Share Option Scheme (continued) 29.

Share Option Scheme (continued)
The following share options were outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme during the year:

B EST &l ()

B ESTEI (&)

AT ARG BRI BB T 4 R T
FERRAE -

2016 2015
—E-AE —ET-nF

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options

HK$ HK$

per share per share

hnfEF g hniE1g
TEE  BREHE TR BREHRE

F)RE T BGE T
At 1 January n—H—H 5.24 13,515,000 5.24 15,885,000
Lapsed during the year FERRK 5.24 (13,515,000) 5.24 (2,370,000)

At 31 December Rt+-_A=+—H

- 5.24 13,515,000

No share options were granted and exercised during the
year.

All the outstanding options lapsed upon expiry on 17 May
2016. The respective share option reserve of
HK$27,923,000 has been transferred to retained profits
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Reserves 30.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents (i) the
excess of the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation of certain members
of the Group which took place on 31 December 1992, over
the nominal value of issued shares of Embry Group Limited
("EGL") in exchange therefor; (i) the premium arising from
the shares issued by EGL for settlement of the amount due
to the ultimate holding company of HK$15,841,000; (iii) the
premium arising from the acquisition of Embry (H.K.)
Limited (“Embry HK") from the non-controlling interests of
HK$5,000,000; and (iv) the excess of the nominal value of
the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the group reorganisation, over the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor
and the then existing 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each
credited as fully paid at par.

FRRBRHO RITERBRE -

FTAEMATEBERER-_ZE—X~"FHA
TEtREERERE - BEZT - F+=
A=+ —B1t BEHEERER®B
27,923,000 B LB EERE G T

(G
BREBEFEASERFESEARALE
B0 2 NUBBRR NGRS EBRA

REEEHABENBBEEAR —ANAZ
F+ZA=+—RHKBAEESETKRER
A ZEKBARRMDMEER LI
7 3 # BT % 1TEmbry Group Limited
([EGLD) B ®IMEZEEE : (i) EGLBLERE
IRAS B 52 iR 2 B 5/78 15,841,000 7T 1M
EITEITIRMDEEREE ¢ (i) R IEE IR
DWELZRE (BB ERARA(ZMEE
7 |) BT EE A4 %5 {8 5,000,000 7T ¢ K (iv) 1R
1B 52 (31 55 4R UK B B I8 X R MO AR AN Y T B R
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30. Reserves (continued)
In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in
the PRC, subsidiaries of the Company established in the
PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage of their
profits after tax, if any, to the enterprise expansion and
statutory reserve funds, which are non-distributable, before
profit distributions to shareholders. The amounts of the
transfers are subject to the approval of the board of
directors of these subsidiaries.

The Group applied the transitional provision of HKFRS 3
which permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions which
occurred prior to 1 January 2001, to remain eliminated
against the consolidated reserves. The amount of goodwill
remaining in consolidated reserves, arising from the
acquisition of subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2001, was
stated at cost, which amounted to HK$3,168,000 (2015:
HK$3,168,000) as at 31 December 2016.

31. Operating Lease Arrangements
(@) Aslessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 17)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to six years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling

30.

31.

#RE )

BB ERNEEERE - ADRREEH
M MHBATABEETED LB
1% F) (A0 ) 72 10 AR SV % U 5 R A g
BECEBRLETCREES (BATAH
E) - BENSHEASZEHBRARNES
SHES AEE

AEBERAEBVBRELEANEIFH
WEMEY  AF_EZE—F—H—08H
ETWEEENEER#IFELGEFREED
Hit - RENGEREAR T —F—
A—HAIWEBHNBERAREEANEESHEIR
RAGNE RZE—"F+ZA=+—H
53,168,000 L (ZZF—HF : 3,168,000
BIT) e

KEHNZH

(a) EALBEA
AEBRBEEHYLZHHERE
W (B 17)  BAOUNF—2X
FEHEITER -

R E AR RE - RIBAEE R
MPRISL 2 MR MEHE 2 - &
SERAT B2 R R &I EUE

due as follows: THEBNT
2016 2015
—E-ARF —ZT—-hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within one year —F R 12,693 10,668
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERF(BEEEMT) 18,314 6,939
31,007 17,607
In addition, the operating lease rentals for the use of peoh - ERAREECN EBZETF

certain floor areas of the Group’s building located in
Shanghai are contingent based on sales of the shops
pursuant to the terms and conditions as set out in
the respective agreements. As the future sales of
these shops could not be accurately determined, the
relevant contingent rent has not been included
above.

ZETBE AR 5K
HoermAB L HREEH
195 5 P8 2 16K B IR IH IR S 2 3
EHETE - HNZFEH 2 RKH
ERORBEERIEE - WARKAR
MEXRBEELRK -
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31. Operating Lease Arrangements (continued)

31. KREMEANZTH®)

(b) As lessee (b) {EAREEA
The Group leases certain of its shops, counters, REBREBELEMOZHERET
warehouses and office properties under operating B B BERBAEYE
lease arrangements with leases negotiated for terms AT BEAN—F+FFEAEITHER -
mainly ranging from one to ten years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REREHARIE R BIEAER Y
total future minimum lease payments under non- NAREEEEHL - KREBEBRLAT
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: Bz RRRERMNESEENT
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—AfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 107,155 113,508
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZERF (BREEREMSF) 58,674 51,072
After five years HE% 5,416 3,931
171,245 168,511
In addition, the Group has entered into agreements AN REBEEBHE R FE M H
with department stores to enable the Group to set # WEREEEREARINMAR
up its retail outlets therein. The operating lease TEH - ERAEARZEEEE
rentals for the use of their floor areas in department it 2 LA HE THREEE
stores are based on the higher of a fixed rental or HeRFABEMEP IR EE
contingent rent based on sales of the retail outlets E o RAMETIIREE B E
pursuant to the terms and conditions as set out in ZHERRIGHREER 2 IHERE
the respective agreements. As the future sales of EoARNZETER I ARIHER
these retail outlets could not be accurately NEEERIME T WERIAESR
determined, the relevant contingent rent has not WARBIEE LK - FRE&HIIKE
been included above and only the minimum lease HHEANE -
commitments have been included in the above
table.
32. Commitments 32. EiE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the

following commitments:

RBEHREEER - NEBEZAENT

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Contracted for commitments in respect BEYE  BEER&EZ
of the acquisition of property, EEIFOES
plant and equipment 122,738 170,854
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33.

34.

ERERRF ’l 89

Contingent Liabilities 33. HAAR
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not RIFERR - BB RERPEETIREE 2
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: ARBEWT -
2016 2015
—RE —hEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Bank guarantees given in lieu of property BREMEMERS R AEEE
rental deposits and utility deposits BE R RITER 1,788 2,196
Financial Instruments by Category 34. RERSHzEWMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REREHRAERS RS TANKREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as U
follows:
Financial assets TRIEE
Loans and receivables ERRERFRIE
2016 2015
—RE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Trade receivables EWE 5 BE%}( 85,220 90,486
Financial assets included in prepayments, 7| ATE{ 7B - & M
deposits and other receivables ﬁ{ﬂﬁ’él& IEZ BhEE 5,029 6,361
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEBY 190,187 233,017
280,436 329,864
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBERATEZERMEE
2016 2015
—RE —hfF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HBIRITER 354,833 308,211
Trade payables FET B SR 87,678 68,206
Financial liabilities included in other EBREREMENTRIE R
payables and accruals EFtREZeRMEBE 184,618 145,016
627,129 521,433
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35.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments, comprise cash,
short term deposits and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to
both fair value and cash flow interest rate risks. The Group's
exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's bank borrowings with floating
interest rates.

At present, the Group does not intend to hedge its
exposure to interest rate fluctuations. However, the Group
will constantly review the economic situation and its interest
rate risk profile, and will consider appropriate hedging
measures in future as may be necessary.

At 31 December 2016, the profit before tax of the Group
would have been decreased/increased by approximately
HK$1,774,000 (2015: HK$1,541,000) if the interest rate has
been increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all other
variables held constant.

Foreign currency risk

The Group carries on its sales and purchases transactions
mainly in Hong Kong dollars and RMB. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to protect against the
volatility associated with foreign currency transactions and
other financial assets and liabilities created in the ordinary
course of the business. However, as the Group's net profit
is reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will be a translation
gain as a result of the RMB appreciation, and vice versa.
The majority of the Group’s operating assets are located in
Mainland China and are denominated in RMB.

35.

M EEEREEEREEK

AEECZIESRIABERS  BHF
AT RIRITER - HFERTATER
MERAREREXHRE - AKEAH
i TRSREERAE  NEKE S EX
RENBZESR  DEEKEBRERTE
o

AEBERTAZTERARBMEEAR
SMNERRR - FERBRMABESER - E
EEHIHEEREA S ERR 2 BER -
BEREMBURIT -

IR
RenE8MNEARAERTARKRESR
ERMSMNEZECTRBORR - AEE
RAFASZAFERRSREMNEEE - A
SEMAZMNERENTISER 28
AEEFBFIRFTHEAIRITEREGR -

B AT - 7N S B B 0 AT B AR ) ) RO
B o R - AERESE BB R K
HFZXERMAR TEEEAREARE
BEE PR o

i F = EFt TRRS0EZ, - MATEEMEA
ZRFAE RZT—RF+_A=+—
B % EFKA G RS mng
1,774,0008 7L (ZZE—HF : 1,541,000/%8
JT) °

S EEE [ i
AEBIENBIRLARBETEER
5o AEBYEUATESH T ARYEHTH
BEBBREZINEXZREMEBMEE R
BEMM®ZKE - AT - ARAEEZ
MAMABTZ2S]  MAREIER S KE
B RZIR - AEBRBOHREE
R BIAREE - WAAREIR -



2016 3 / %

ERERRF 19"

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B R FTRE (F8)

31 December 2016 —Z—A~"F+=-A=1+—H

35.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and  35.

Policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

MR REEE

B R B (&)
TRINFABEHEEER - EEEA

AZ2RZERTENERLT  ARENHH
Ag M ARBERAEHRAEES 2
BRE(RREBEENBENRTFEE
g) e

ENRBUER (&)

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in RMB rate in profit
AR before tax
EREH BANREF
(T#) i, GR)
% HK$'000
FHET
2016 ZE-RE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B TRARERE 5 6,008
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB &8 TH A RBHE (5) (6,008)
2015 —ZT—h%F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT ARKEE 5 9,062
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB /& T { A REFAE (5) (9,062)
Credit risk EERE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy AEBERMANEERINETPETR

customers. It is the Group's policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and on an individual basis.
Each of the customers has been attached with a trading
limit and any excess of the limit must be approved by the
general manager of the operation unit. Under the tight
control of the credit term and detailed assessment of the
creditworthiness of individual customers, the Group's
exposure to bad debts is maintained as minimal.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
note 20 to the financial statements.

5o REARENBR - ENABNEE
FAETRINEPYAKLBEERER
FFo thoh - AEB TR EER S BEUK
Rt ASEHEREPRIESR
B OBERBECELARIEEBU A
B - AR AKERZEEES YA
BEBIEP ZEEEHENG  BAKH
ZERE RS

AEEEMEREENEERREERS
RIREFEY REMREEFER - BHTE
HMELNEERR  ERMESFRZETLAR
ZERmEE -

MR EEEE SRR E L B,
B2 i — 7 B R RS SRR I3 20
0 -



'I 92 EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B R FTRE (F8)

31 December 2016 —Z—A~"F+=-A=1+—H

35.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and  35.

Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet
all contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The
Group's objectives are to maintain a prudent financial
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to
maintain a contingency plan for funding to ensure that the
Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirement.

The Group continued to enjoy adequate cash position with

cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$190,187,000
(2015: HK$233,017,000) as at 31 December 2016.

The Group financed its operations and investment activities
by internally generated cash flows and bank borrowings.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at

MEEREEEEREGK &)
REBESEE
//\L@Jéiﬂ TE% éiuf’iﬁﬁﬁﬁ

J%ZEOMW%V $%@ZE IR
FRREZEHBE - #ERR ﬁﬁXWﬂ
RBESE  WRBEREZESTE - #
1%$E@E1%E/jiﬁi L/U?EhL/\/m@Jéi

F o

RIE—RE+-_A=+—H K&EE#%
ﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁiZ%W#ﬁ HRS KR

£EBY5190,187,0008 T( —E—HF -
233,017,000/%57E)

$%5§i@|ﬂq%ﬁ§$zfﬁimb&fﬁ 1ﬁ
B RHEEBRIRESHREHEES

%ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ AEBREE KRR

the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual RNZEE s emaEkREe XZDT :
undiscounted payments, was as follows:
Within
1 year 1 to5 years Total
—FR —ZhEF st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
2016 —REF
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Jr E' SRITIE R 141,869 231,718 373,587
Trade payables FERTE SRR 87,678 - 87,678
Other payables and accruals H b FE A RRIE K FEE T IR 184,618 - 184,618
414,165 231,718 645,883
2015 —E—FHF
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STESRITER 131,189 191,746 322,935
Trade payables FEE SEER 68,206 - 68,206
Other payables and accruals E b A SRIE M FEET R IE 145,016 - 145,016
344,411 191,746 536,157

The Group is also exposed to liquidity risk through the
granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are
disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to the owners through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance where appropriate. No change was
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

BRBROPBER  AEETEERDE
R BE-PHBRERPBHRERN
FE33°

EXREHE
AEEEREERAABRAEEREISES
B RAREEEREBBIER RERE
BRONER) S HEAEANLBREESZKA - R
BE_ZTZ-R"FA_T-—AF+-A
=+—HILFE EREAZARE  BX
HIEFFA MBS o
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35.

36.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and  35.

Policies (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt

which includes bank borrowings and equity attributable to
owners of the Company. Equity attributable to owners of
the Company comprises issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total bank borrowings divided by the equity attributable
to owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end
of the reporting periods were as follows:

BEEREEEERBE®)

BEAREE (4
$’i.§$ﬁi$§&?*Eﬁﬁ%f%%ﬁﬁqjﬁﬁﬁﬁ
TEREANREVERS AEMLRE - KA T
HEABERERIEGAERESRATIH
BENEBITRA  EERMREET -

U H

ARBEBEER B RRE (BIRTTIER
FREERR AR AR A ABEBHE) BEEE
Ko RmERREERBLFWT ¢

2016 2015

—RE —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEERITER 354,833 308,211
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 &% B A B i 1,719,487 1,790,823
Gearing ratio BEAGELE 20.6% 17.2%

Statement of Financial Position of the

Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

36. EADFEHBARREK

ARBREMRBBARKLT

2016 2015
—RE —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NI 864,658 917,018
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments B R 46 44
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 153 152
Total current assets MEEELE 199 196
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H R FRIE N e A RUR 4,984 8,335
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (4,785) (8,139)
Net assets BEFE 859,873 908,879
EQUITY e
Share capital [N 4,166 4,166
Reserves (Note) i (HaE) 855,707 904,713
Total equity e 859,873 908,879
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36.

Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (continued)

36. RQBEAMRRE @)

Note: Wi
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: RNRFEBEERT -
Share Share
premium  Contributed option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
REER BaBH BRERA RERR st
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fiz# FET FET FET FEL FET
At 1 January 2015 RZE-R§—A—H 369,644 381,248 32,784 40,991 824,667
Profit for the year and total FERFRER
comprehensive income for the year ~ 2E A B - - 138,378 138,378
Share options lapsed BIRELY - (4.861) 4,861 -
2014 final and special dividends ERREXN_Z-0F
declared and paid RERK RIS 14 - - (41,666) (41,666)
2015 interim dividend “Z-RERHRE 14 - - (16,666) (16,666)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—hE
and 1 January 2016 +ZA=1+—H
E-T—~5—A—H 369,644 381,248 27,923 125,898 904,713
Profit for the year and total FERFRER
comprehensive income for the year ~ 2E A% - - 3,077 3,077
Share options lapsed BRUEL N 29 - (27,923) 27,923 -
2015 final and special dividends ERREXN_Z-1%F
declared and paid RERKFRIRE 14 - - (41,666) (41,666)
2016 interim dividend ZE-RERERE 14 - - (10,417) (10,417)
At 31 December 2016 RZT—RE
+ZA=1—H 369,644 381,248 - 104,815 855,707

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess
of the then net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company pursuant to the group reorganisation, over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefor and the then existing 10,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid at par. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium and
contributed surplus may be distributed to the shareholders of
the Company, provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related options expire, be forfeited or lapse.

ARBNEHEBRIIANRRIRIEEBEEAW
BHEARMNEREEFEBEARAGL
FITERR B R AT E N RIZEEARS
YE& 2 810,000,000 I B AR E 1A 0.01 /& 7T B
BERRARND - REFMSHERRE - BR)
HERLREHBEKT DK T ARRRBIER - I
REEZEFRIKM RS BEE - NRRMARE
EEERFEBHIMESR-

BRERABREDRBDERRITENBREN
RNFE - RERERM 2.4 LA D R AR
RHH G BRTAMFL - BB N B
BREETERERERNDEER XA
BB E D - O MR R SR E R

BUF -
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37.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are as

2016 3k / ZH T

37. FEMEBARESR

ARREEMBARMNFEWT

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BETR
HEMRL HERS
8 AR EMER RARELESZAEALL TEER
2016 2015
—NE —hF
Embry Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
ZHRBEEMERA B 100787T REER
Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd. PRC/ RMB136,200,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“Embry CZ")** Mainland China A K% 136,200,000 7 ladies' brassieres, panties,
ZFF (BN REER hEREARE swimwear and sleepwear
(TRZFFZEM )+ HERBEERMNE -
B KT R BE K
Embry (China) Garments Ltd. PRC/ HK$11,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("Embry SZ")** Mainland China 11,000,000 70 ladies’ brassieres, panties,
ZHF (PE)REFRA HE AR swimwear and sleepwear
(TZ=HF RN ) ** ERBEEZMERE -
AR KR R BEK
Embry HK Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres,
TR BB % HK$45,000 panties, swimwear and
*Non-voting deferred sleepwear
HK$4,500,000 BERMME - A -
Limik KK R HEXK
45,0007 7T
*EEERRER
4,500,000/ 7T
Embry (Macau) Fashion Company Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres,
Limited (Embry (Macau) R 100,000 29 # panties, swimwear and
Pronto A Vestir, Limitada) sleepwear
TR (RPN BEBR AR BEEZMHERE - WiE -
KK REER
Embry (Shandong) Garments PRC/ US$18,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
Limited (“Embry SD")** Mainland China 18,000,000 % 7T ladies’ brassieres, panties,
LT (R) RERBRAF R K swimwear and sleepwear
([RFFILR]) ** HERBEERMRNE -
WAE -~ KR RER
Embry (Shanghai) Company PRC/ HK$238,000,000 100 100 Design, research and
Limited ("Embry SH")** Mainland China 238,000,000 7T development and trading
TR (L8 BRAR B, ELRRE of ladies’ brassieres, panties,
(T=HFE £l swimwear and sleepwear

Rt W RER
BRELIEME -
Pt - KR R BER

ERERRF ’l 95
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37.

38.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Issued and

37.

FERBATEER &)
AATEEMBATGOFISHT : ()

Percentage of

registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
SRITR
HEARL HBRRHB
2% EMREE L HfER ARREEEEEAL TEEH
2016 2015
“E-XE T84
Embry Garments Limited BVI Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
EBRLHE 1% BREZR
EGL BVI Us$472 100 100 Investment holding
EBRLHE 472%7T BREZR
Embry International Limited BVI Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
ZHRFERERAT EBRLHE 1% BREZR
Gallin Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
EFRBBRAF HiE 28T BREZR
Prime Force Advertising Limited Hong Kong HK$20 100 100 Property investment
&t 20/E7C MELE
Whistleblower Limited BVI Us$1 100 100 Holding of trademarks
EBRLHE 1% REAL

The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to
dividends (other than for any financial year during which
the net profit of Embry HK available for dividend exceeds
HK$1,000,000,000,000), no rights to vote at general
meetings and no rights to receive any surplus in return of
capital in a winding-up in respect of the first
HK$500,000,000,000,000.

*x Embry CZ, Embry SZ, Embry SD and Embry SH are
registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
the PRC law.

Except for EGL, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly
held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2017.

38.

* 1 SRR A AL IR 0 A (S A T MR R
B (REF 75 &8 ] (R B a4 F 8
48 1,000,000,000,000% 7T 49 (E (] 41 B
FEEIN) - RBRRA S LRERR
)& 88 I 42 BY B 500,000,000,000,000
FBITR B E AR BT (] R

b LHRFEIM - ZFFRI - ZFIFFLL
B R 2 #75_LAFIIR IR P BZ% () 72 i
REINEDREE -

BREGLYN - PR E AR B AR R
CEESSECIN

FRAFIAAANBARD D EEREHE
FREEAESYEABAAEBEET
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